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The southwestern ProVINCES of Georgla, comprised of 1 °ört umı, Art vını,
and Aavset‘i (all wıthın present-day Turkey) ATe studded ıth eccles1astıical
mMoOoNuUumMents churches, scr1ıptor1a, refectorı1a, chapels, an sem1narTIıes. ome
of these bulldıngs, known only through the passıng descr1ptions of travellers
N! chroniclers, Are 110 completely destroyed ; others, converted ınto

quaTrTIES, ATe rapıdly disappearıng. However, there ATe still SOINe relatıvely
well-preserved churches built between the nınth an eleventh centurles
which Arle important not only for the study of Georglan archıtecture but
93180 for better understandıng of Middle Byzantıne and even Komanesque
archıtecture.

Thıs 1S based personal observatıons of the remalnıng SETUCTLUTES

themselves, the eplgraphic materı1al, an the highly instruct.ıve
CONtEMPOTATY hagıographic hlıterature wrıtten In thıs VL reg10N. It W as

PUuTPOSeE LO iınvestigate the procedures which WeIe observed ın bulldıng
monastıc complexes well the materjals an technıques sed fOor theır
econstruetion and other related matters

Sıtes anıd Plans

The construection of the monastıc cComplexes and lofty churches 1ın the
mountaınous of Tao-Klarjet’i requlred SOINe preparatory work LO
fınd suntable locatıon! which insured both the safety of the monastery*®*

should ıke to CX PICSS gratitude to the American Councıl of Learned Socıieties whose
gran made thıs study possible.

I’he search by S1X monks for sultable and to build In the pathless mountaın wilderness
18 deseribed 1ın the hr08 of Serapion arzmelil, wrıtten In the first. Qua  T of the tenth century
by Basıl Zarzmelh. T’he MOST recent edıtıon of thıs hagiographic work IS by Abuladze,
Dzvelr K'art’ ulz Agrograp vulı Ianteraturıs Dzegleb: (T’bilisı 1963 319-347 (thereafter quoted
Zarzmeli, b108)

'The signifi1cance of the strateg1c factor 18 evident ın the topographic locatıon of these
monasterl1es which AIlec removed TOM Maın roads by 4-5km, hıdden by hilly terraın an! ush
vegetatıon an sometimes, In the Casc of Handzt’a N! Ckarost’avili, almost inaccess1ible. Thus,
they ALr protected not only TOM hostile CVCS but TOM inclement wıinds ell.
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and ıts eCOoNOMIC independence. Other ımportant actors WerTe healthy
clımate, ertile So1l, adequate water supply for domestie consumptıon
and ırrıgatıon ell mills, wood for heatıng anı construction, N! the
proxımıty of quarrıes LO provıde construction mater1al.

The vırtues N! shortcomıings of typıcal MONAaSTETY 1ın thıs reg10n ATre

deser1bed 1ın the SO an Actıyıtiles of Our Blessed Yather Grigol of
Handzt’a’”. In thıs hagıographıic work wrıtten 1n 950, the bıographer erCule
not only relates 91 gTre& length anecdotes CONCErNING the bulldıng methods
of the SavSet‘-Ardanuj reg10n, but he dwells UDON the envıronmental
features of the mMOoNastery ell He tells u other thıngs, that
°““the unınhabıted land of thıs reg10nN 1S ell balanced DYy nature ; for neıther
the intense heat wiıll urn 107 the eXceedıng cold 111 bother 1112  - there
Because 1t 18 distinet from ıts ne1ıghbourıng land DYy being dTYy, untorrıd,
and exposed LO the SUun, the soles of man’s feet 111 be muddıed
whıle walkıng. The Water 1S x00d, an wood 1s plentiful. The Sandy oround
W countless tall, dense orests and from them spring aSty waters,
N thus, (+0d has endowed thıs land ıth Joyful nature. And ıt 1S pathless
and inaccessıble LO those leadıng worldly lıfe, because the dwellings of
these monks ATE ocated the rugged hıgh mountaıns. On ONne sıde
ıt 1s bordered by the Samıe mountaıns and from the other DYy the permanent
border of the water FeSeTVOLT of Savéet‘i, emanatıng {rom ıts mountaıns.
Thus these monasterıes ATe surrounded , ]] sıdes by mountaıns, SJOTZES,
DYy waters flowıng OoOWnNn irom the irıghtenıng heights of the steep mountaılns.
And ın these monasterıes there 1s pasture to be I]NOWN, NOr wheat fıelds
LO be ploughed, an therefore, food 18 brought the back f donkeys ıth
gTreat dıfficulty. Y there 1S SOTINe wıne and there AT also orchards which
ave een planted by the monks ıth the utmost to1l and hardshıp.
However, 1ld ATe 1n abundance, an ıth these a ]] the hearts of these
monks ArIe fearless agaınst the troubles caused by the anımosıty of the
landlordse. And 1n thıs completely peaceful INanneTtr they ex1ist calmly an
glorıfy Christ’’3

The monasterlies of Tao-Klarjet’1 ATe ocated speclally levelled platforms,
these being generally the southern slopes of the mountaıns. Two
eXxceptions AT the monasterles of Ot‘ht‘a Kkles]ja and Aatberdi whıch
ATe ocated the northern dechivıties of the mountaıns for topographıc
T1EAaSONS The form >Mal dımens1ons of the platforms ALl determıned by
topographıc condıtions, but they AT much Jlarger the southern sıde of

Abuladze, C:, 269 (thereafter quoted Merö6Gule, b4108). The 208 of Grigol
Handzt’eli (Grigol of Handzt’a) well the previously-mentioned 108 of Seraplion Zarzmel:i
(Serapion of Zarzma) 18 avaılable Iso In Latin translatıon S, An Boll 36-37 [1917-1919,
published 1n 159-309).
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the churches. Ar the ame tıme, Aas ON would eXPect, the southern acades
of these churches ATrT’e lavıshly adorned ıth archıtectural sculpture
an inscr1ptions. Preparatory work sunch Aas the construetion of the platforms
an the bulldıng of buttressing walls a P PCaIs LO ave een task almost
equal ın dıfficulty the econstruet.ion of the church ıtself. 'T’hıs 18 eonfıtmed
ın the Bı0s of GrigoJ of Hanzt’a where the bıiographer S5Aabes that after
consecratıng the sıte, ‘“Arsen, the pr10T of the monastery of Hanzt’a, began
the econstruetion of the beautıful church OI the declıyvıty of VeErY

mountaın whıich WaS evelled off ıth such long and hard labor by
usıng fırm oravel an lıme, that after levellıng the platform and bulldıng
the buttressing all it; seemed ıf the eonstruetion of the church 1ad
een completed””4,

T’he churches of thıs per10d WEOEIEC bult 1ın accordance ıth plans which
WeTe traced. T’hıs 1S evıdent from > document compıled by (G(eorglan

of letters, Kp'rtem Mceire, who tells that the enlıghtener of (Feorgla,
Nıno, TEW the plan of church dedieated LO the Savlıour and that ıt; WasS

later built by archıtects and mMasons> 1’he bıographer of Serapıon of Zarzma,
Basıl Zarzmeli. lıkewıise SayS that derapıon traced the plan of church
and DaVC 1t; LO the archıteet Michael an hıs assıstant, the Auartkeli.
Ihey, and N1UMeTOUS laborers TrTaıned by them, buillt the church 1t; Was

outlıned ın the plan More evıdence thıs 3CC0OUNT 1S provıded by capıtal
of the ate tenth-century church 1 K "0T0&0 whıch depicts donor holdıng
the plan of the Sarmıe church (fıg. 1 However. there 1s evıdence CONCeErNINS
the mater1al upPOoN whıch the plan of the church Was drawn8.

Materzals and Methods of Vonstructon

As 1S CUSTOMATY ın other PrOoVvINCES of Georgla, north 5yrıa and Armenına,
MerGule, DL0S., 277 IT’he declivıty of the mountaın 18 that the support of the

eastern part of the church requıred 6.25 m.-hıgh stone al consısting of fourteen Ven

COUTSES. 'T’hıs wall, which surveyed ıIn 1965, stil] exısts In 1ts orıgınal form. See Iso Marr,
7607949 erCulı, Zitie (Arıgoruia K hanztuıskogo, Teksty razıskanıa DO armıano-gruzınskor
Jrılologrtr, VIL | Petersburg

Kemport the CONVETSLON of he (7e0r qiANs and uN ıwhich hook s 8 mentioned (In Georgilan)
ed Bregadze (L’bilısı 1959 13-15

Zarzmell, bt0s., 344
Mep 1sasviılı, ‘“ Relief rubeza. VE G  E vekov sScenamı strojtelstva. Khrame

selen1a8. Korogo’, Sovetskara Arkheologıa, (Moskow 228, fig
e In the Monastery of SIR Symeon the Y ounger, the plan of the trefoıl martyrıum Was

traced the ground (C ango, 'Isaurian bullders’’ Festschraıft Dölger, 1967, 360) On
plans an drawıngs In Byzantıum, sSCcC Downey, 'Byzantine archıtects theır traınıng
and methods’”. Byzantıon (1946-458),
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the churches of Tao-Klarjet’1 WeTe built 1ın d dry HMasoNr Y technıque®.
The materı1a|l WasSs eıther lımestone O 1NOTe frequently, locally quarrıed
sandstone whıch evıdently Was transported by sleds, thıs being A safe
1164NS of transportatıon wıdely sed EeEVen ın Sumımer ın thıs mountaınous
reg10n!0, In the seventh and eıg hth centurı1es, relatıyvely large blocks of
roughly squared StONES used 1ın 6VOeN T"’OWS back tO hback wıthout mMortar
between the GCOUTSES and ıth ınımal fıllıng between the interl1o0r and
exterl1o0r walls (e.g.; Opiza, Parehl, and the dwellıngs for monks 1N

Ckarost‘avı). Later, In the nınth CEeNTUTY, the StONES become much smaller
(0.30 (0.20 m.. ) and evenly Cut yut the exterli1o0r surfaces L € roughly
chipped ff The StONES ere laıcl ın VE COUTSEeS wıt h A layer of thick
(0.02-0.04 M} MoOTtaTtT Thıs technıque Was employed 1n Hanzt’‘a, ın the
or1ginal church of Saban aft IShanı, and ın Doliskana. Krom the mıddle f
the tenth CENTUTY O the churches built JM €  A elaborate foundatıon
(krepidoma) whıch Was surmounted by stylobate platform cCOomposed of
evenly squared and smoothly finıshed blocks formıng three OT fıve en
(ca (0).20 wıde N! (0).20 hıgh) These surrounded the entire chureh.
In a 1{ the stylobate WaS vısıble above the gTOoUNd level Upon the
stylobate Was pavemen consıstıng of smoothly finıshed rectangular
StONEeS (ca 0.15 thıck) tıghtly adıusted LO each other T°’he church
walls of ashlar econsısts of LWO shells of smoothly finıshed squared blocks
of yellowısh sandstonell unıformly ald ıIn Cven Ccourses?!?, the COUTSEeS of‘the
exterl1o0r shell correspondıng LO the COUTSEeS of the inter10rT shell The A VEa
S17E of the stones 1S 0.50 0.40 the thın layer of mMortar between the
OCOUTSEeS 1S not vısıble an the between the exterl1o0r ‚N inter10T shells
of the wall, whıch aMOUNTtS LO about thırd of the total thıckness of the
wall, 18 fılled ıth oravel ubON which mMortar has been poured. TF H@ INasons

paıld specıal attention tOo the portion of the a 11 whıch had LO be
fırm enough LO wıthstand the utward thrust of the barrel vaults an the

In this regard, there Ar three exceptions smaill chapel ocated southeast of the Ot’ht’a
Kklesıia (Dörth Kilisse) basılıca, the inter1or wall of the Samne basılıca where stone alternates
ıth brick In Byzantine churches, and the maın church In the monastery of Parehi where

the eastern exter10r wall, instead of brick, ach CO of ashlar alternates ıth stone plates
which aVEragE (0.07 1ın thickness.

T’he transportatıon of stone by of such sled 1S depleted 1n the cornıce of the
church al Korogo (Tıg A) mentioned above. Iso represented Aare Varlıous stages of construecetion
such stone-cutting, the M1Xing and delivery of lıme, stone splitting, water Carrlers LO molsten
the stone before ıt 18 set In liıme, the conseecratıon of the church, etCc. (Mep isasvili, O' cCrt
223-226).

'To finısh the stone’s surface In diagonal strokes fine-toothed dze Was used.
In SOIMNE instances e.g., Skı an Hahuli) this rule 1S nOot consistently observed due LO

varlatıon In the height of the blocks; however, ese Ar always precisely fitted to ach other
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rO00OL. The stabılıty of these walls Was insured ıth metallıe clamps bındıng
the stones 1ın the uppermos COUTSE e:g:; T’bet’‘1) by inserting long wooden
beams 0.302® m. ) Just below the cornıce eg, Oskı)13 by interlockıng
the blocks of the uppermost GOUTLSO In Hahulı (Tıg The stone WaSs

quarrIed locally, but the bıiographer of Serapl1on, Basıl, indicates, whenever
desired STONE WaS not avallable, nearby rıverrock had LO be sed and

WaSs obtaıned “* with oTeat difficulty” from the T1ver bed14 Such OC  C5,

however, sSeemnl LO ave been relatıvely 14r e In the Samıe SOUTCeEe learn
of Case where ashlar WwWas gathered from the sıte of church destroyed
by earthquake N! Was reused for the econstruection of the COTNEeIS,

arches, WIndows, and doors of another church15. Not only sStones but a lso
lıme had LO be carrıed OVeTr exceedingly dıffieult paths from faraway places
by 1neNn who bought the lıme by ıts weight16,

Varıous lıghtweight materılals sed LO dimınısh the weıght of the
walls HKor the construction of domes (especlally cupolas), arches, and

vaultıng, VeELY lıght an POTOUS volcanıc sStoNne called spondıkı Was used17.
'T’hıs mater1al WaS employed MOST frequently and abundantly ın Ishanı
(fıg. 3) In the walls both sıdes of the lower portion of the double pıtched
rO0Of the western sıde (which 1S deprived of ıts or1gınal ro0f), feWwW eMPUtY
Jars WeTe a 180 found inserted iınto the al In Oskı, LTrAaCces of charcoal
WeIe etected ın the ATECA of the south-western pendentıve (where the SQUAaTLE
bay 1S reduced LO cırcle). T'hıs 1S indıieatıon that the Was

concerned ıth lessenıng the welght.
polychromatıc treatment of exter10T church walls ın Tao-Klarjet’ı

MUuSt ave een COMMMON T’hıs 1S demonstrated 1 the church of Dolhskana
where StONeEeSs of VarTl0OuUs colors sed ın addıtıon LO Varlous pızments;
lıght purple, brown, red, evenh blocks inserted iırregularly
into the exter10r walls LO enhance the exXxterl10r aPpPPCAarahnce of the church.
Niches N! conches, wındow frames., the backgrounds of carved fıgural

ornamental patterns, an EVeEeN entire surfaces of the walls an
archıtectural sculpture WeTe reated polychromatically, for example, 91

OSkı Kven inscr1ptions ın the inter10rT and exter1o0r of the churches WEeTe

executed In colors : red, purple (Oskı), intensıve blue, whıte viıolet

art, of thıs relatiıvely well-preserved beam 18 vıisıble the northern exterlor all Just
below the cornice of the NaVvVe. It W as analyzed by the chief wood anatomıst NF the Depart-
ment of Agriculture (Forest Service) In Madıson, Wisconsın, who identified ıt Pınus

Sylvestrus Piınus 1gra
Zarzmell, DL0S., 335
TIhidem.
Meröeule, brOS., DE

17 Perhaps derıyes TOM Greek SPONdLOS spondıiakos, (Liddell-Scott, Greek Englısh
Lexicon S, OTOVÖLAKOS).
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background, an red (IShanı). These colorıstie accents emphasıze key
architectural parts and the structural logıc of the entire bulldıng. Most
frequently, red and blue pıgments WeTe applıed alternatıng 1ın rachal
desıgn for WIndows (fıg. 4) pedıments, fOor the radıal £{lutings ın the conches
of exter10r triangular nıches. In the church 31 Hahulı, huge radıatıng
monolithıe wıne-Tred bricks alternatıng ıth yellowısh sandstone WeTe sed
In place of pıgzments of the sSAamme color. T’hey radıate from above the exterl10r
WwWIndow {rames a ]] sıdes of the church ‚N! EVEeEN from the ome WINdOows.
Pıgments WEeIc 93180 applıed 5O fıgural sculpture of the seraphım, bıbhical
[1gures, an even hıstorıcal personalıtıes such Grigol (fıg. 9) who 1S
iıdentified by inscr1ption the SUPErVISOT of construetion of the church
1 Oskı 963-973). Such rehefs WeTe carved the octagonal pler of the
southern gallery ın the church of Oskı where lıght blue and scarlet red
Was employed. The Deesıs {19UrES whıch proJject from the wıne-Ted back-
ground the southern part of the Samıe church incelude LWwWO donors holdıng
models of the church (fıg. 9) They WeTe embellished ıth gold, lıght vıolet
an wıne-Ted pızments an possıbly other colors NO faded18. If consıder
that the roofs of Hahulı an Ishanı WeTIe ecovered ıth glazed polychrome
tıles whiıich eVEeN 10 sparkle 36 1mpressıve v1vacıty, Ca  - easıly
understand the gre& ımportance that the archıtects of Tao-Klarjet’ı
churches attached LO polychromy 1n rel1g10us archıtecture. T ’hıs trend
owarTds polychromy whiıich Was generated and brought LO celımax ın the
churches of Tao-Klarjet’1 evıdently econtinued In Georglan archıtecture
of the eleventh-fourteenth centurles ; however, durıng thıs per10d colors
WEeIte sed sporadıcally an limıted scale19.

Eoof T'rles

Most church roofs ın Tao-Klaryjet’ı collapsed long AgO WeTe plundered
for tıles However, ın T’arle such Othta Kklesıa, portions of the
or1gınal roofing SUTVIVE. In other C  9 firagments of tıles sed for roofing
02  S be gathered 1n the debrıs SurrounNdıng the churches found ın the

port1ions of walls where defective broken tıles WeTe®e sed fıllıng
for mMoOTtAaT. In SOINe instances (Hahulı aN! IShanı), the or1gınal tıles of the
dome’s CON1C roofing ave remaıned intact. Unfortunately, measuremen

badze, ‘“"The donor rehefs an the date of the church at SRı ByZ 69

chmerling, T’he Georgian archıtectural ornament (Tbilisi 1 T mM6 - 9
t‘iıdze, Archaeologıcal eXCAVALLONS un T’balısı 1948 (I’bilısı 1955 158 ome newly-discovered
polychromatic glazed tiles deriving TOM the tenth-eleventh centurlies AUC reproduced ın color
1n Mepisaschwilı an Zinzadse, Ihe K unst des alten Georgrien (Leipzig
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Fıg 0r0go. he eastern COrNLCE of the church representıng the DArLOUS sSiages of church
constructon (after Mep“‘isasvılı)

W aS not obtaınable NOT Was the study of these tıles unN satyı SINCE (wıthout
specıal equıpment) they AT C inaccessıble ; but large number of {ragments
derıving from the roofs of the churches and domes Wa collected and observa-
tıon of the ecOoN1C roofing of domes Was made from short dıstance. The
remaınıng materı1al evıdence and lıterary OUTCES SuggEeSt that MOST, churches
IMn Tao-Klarjet’1 roofed ıth pan-and-roll tıles made of red baked clay
Before applyıng the tıles the surface, profiled tıles WeTe embedded ınto
wet plaster the contours of the ro0of Just above the COTNICEe, thus formıng

SeErT1IES of semı1cıireles (Tıg Bc) saw-toothed moldıng. In thıs WaYy the
transıtıon from cornıce profile DO the roof W as formed?®. Chen the roof
W as cCovered evenly ıth plaster upOoN whıch the pantıles WeIe {17m1y
embedded 1n EvVen symmetrical LTOWS that each COUTSEe W as overlapped
by the ONe above (fıg Ba) As SOONN the plaster drıed, the roll tıles, whıch
Ar e sem1lcırcular ın sect1on. WeTITe locked LO the CONTOUTS of LWO adjacent
pantıles. T’hey fıtted ıth each other DYy NaTtrTtTOoW necks whiıich eonnected
SUCGCESSIVE tıles (fıg. Bb) ach pantıle of the lower LO of the cornıce roof
and 9,11 roll tıles the second TO wWeTe naıled ınto the wet plaster ıth

sıngle long aıl Thus addıtional SUuppPOIt LO prevent the tıles from slıdıng
off Was ereated Just ahbove the cırcular al of the T17 On the remaınıng
surface, naıls WEIC drıyen ınto f1fth OT sixth tıle In the mıddle of the

portion of the tıles amall spherıcal knoh ıth openıng In the center
whiıich tıghtly fıts the cupped naıls protected the roof irom leakage (Tıg Ba)
At Hahulı N! Oskı, the lowest, TOW of roll tıles termınate In pomted triangular
antefiıxes concealıng the ends of tıles These antefiıxes Are accentuated In the
mıddle ıth GOHNGave GCTOSSES whıch ave flarıng 2AUINS (fıg. O, Ba)21

qsimılar solution 18 evıdent In Hahulı: and Oskı, where tıles of corresponding orm an
material ALr C used. hıs indicates that a 11 three churches WEIC roofed T the SaIlle tıme, perhaps
In the third decade of the eleventh CENTUTY.

'The pointed antefiıxes of Hahulı N! Skı an those of IShanı whıich have semilcircular
(0)8001 find vVeEry close formal sim1larıty LO Greek and Roman prototypes On thıs account SC6
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Ar# Hahulı N! IShanı, the rooftiles of the domes WeTe glazed. Here
wıne-Ted, brownısh, N! CGECALLLY dark STECN colors predominate, whereas
the tıles of the double pıtched roof whıch ATr not uN srtu NO but WeTe

gathered. irom the oravel around the church, ATr e lıght translucent 9
dark brown, lodıne and reddish-colored glaze tıles IThus the polychromy
applıed LO the vympana of the WINdOWS, doOrSs, nıches, and archıtectural
sculpture W 4S boldly echoed In the multicolored sparklıng glazed tıles
of the LOOT, thus evokıng unparalleled colorıstıie effect. T’he glazed tıles
no% only ave hıghly gesthetiec effect but practical advantages A well,

Orlando, Les materıaux dAe constructıon el Ia technıque archıtecturale Aes ANCLENS (Arecs
( Parıs 1966 53-86, fig DOr, aN! L1g DIiT,
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SINCE glaze enhances the physıical strength of the tıle aN! ProteCcts ıt from
erOs10N an disıntegration. In addıtıon, ıt prevents the aceumulatıon of
dırt and thus the orowth of shrubs whose TOOTtS OCa  s SECVETE damage.

It 1S ıncertaın whether glazed tıles WEeIiC sed for the roofing of churches
elsewhere ıIn Tao-Klarjet’ı, however, the usSe of agments of glazed tıles
1ın the al of the church 1 Tbet“i iındıcates that the or1gınal roofs of SOINe

churches mMa y ave een covered ıth glazed tıles In other Parts of Georgla,
glazed polychromatıc tıles SECEIN LO ave een sed 1ın few churches, but only
sparıng1y?? N! 1ın bulldıngs later than OUTL examples. An examınatıon of
Hahulı an IShanı glazed tıles indıcates that glaze W as SCAaTrTce SINCE ıt Was

applıed only LO the exposed DaTrts; these tıles WeIC of Super10T quality
inasmuch they WEeItC made of ‘““cleaner” clay and had thicker layer of
glaze The thıckness of the rolltıles varlıes from 0.015 LO 0.0292 whıle
the pantıles Are consıstently 0.021 thıck

Archaitectural Sculpture

An investigatıon of the exXter10r of the dome’s TUumM 91 Oskı showed that
the low rehefs an archıtectural ornaments WeIe one eTtr the installment
of stone the wall Unfinished ornamental decoratıons sSUuggEST that
INasoLS egan Carvıng the patterns after the desiıred motiıf Was outlined

the Wa wıth scarlet pızment Thıs Ca  D be SeEEIl the southwestern
pıer of the southern porch iın Oskı (fıg. {) where ONe Ca observe
unfinıshed Carvıng an clearly detectable drawıng In red the engaged
ahaft T’hıs econfırtms the observatıon that the used ‘“blueprint”
for hıs Car vıng an that the stoNne Was cut from the bottom On the

part of the dome’s TUuMmM ,T Oskı, dıstınetly vıisıble of equal
armed GLOSSES outlined ın red Ca  o be SeCEI Kvıdently the intended
LO the pattern but for SOILNE unknown 1E64A5S0ON had LO abandon hıs
orıgınal plan. The large relıefs, the other hand, such the donor an
Deesis TOUDP, WEeIic probably carved before the monoliths WeTe installed
ın the wa An investigatıon of the sculptures confırmed that the maın

T ’ akalsvılı, Arkhitekturnye ekskursur razıskanıa zametkı, 111 (T’bilısı 1909 145;
ZLakarala, Bulletin of Georgian Natıional Museum (T’bilisı In May 1977,

had the opportunıity LO stud y SOINE Georglan churches al firsthand, anı found that, Bagrat’s
cathedral (completed In 1003 In Kutaisı an the cathedral In Alaverdi WEeEeTI'C liıkewise roofed
ıth glazed tiles T’he fıirst. had ıne-red pan an roll tıles equipped ıth antefixes hıch Arc

very sımılar LO Ose of Ishanı an Hahulı. The dimenslions of the roll tıles Ar 0.30 IN. ;
(0).09 I, ; exter10r (). 4A4 IM. ; inter10r 0.73 The second church Was covered ıth

large pantiles glazed 1n lıght blue 0.67 M. ; 0.30 IM. ; (0).017 m.)
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tools sed for sculpting WeTITe chısels, finetoothed adzes, pıck-axes, and
runnıng drılls23

T’he Donor Inservptions un the Church al Oskı

Our knowledge of the archıtecture of Tao-Klarjet’1 1n the Middle
Byzantıne per10d Ca  - be enrıched by inscr1ptions, mOost of whiıich
ATl cCoNntemporary wıt the churches themselves. One of them 1S the INSCT1P-
tıon ocated the tympanum of the OOT In the southern ,T
Oskı (fıg. S, C) Thıs 1nscr1ption, cComposed. of old (GGeorglan unclals (mrglovanı)

I4I NOILTCD F  CC YdOT dJAYATQLOT OCPT 018TCJO4UL 109 JO "T5ILT 374 WT OT OT u
C3IWRZSWT LIWC VE R0l Or OE STA RD LCSSOPELT K LCNGL BICHWTIOC ZOHIOT RT d’EWECLAIMATOOGCyp? 107STGIOMAT OIONOGBILT

dIOTOTCLT  ON CLT.150 IO9RQ IPICHAOFOCILPIWWTLELTONLT JA L ÄCENT. JOTFWOD1ITKOMKT
Y W BILT DECOCYHET RIKTDOTDOT JCOM OIR10GLTOKTHRLNGLT CICQULOT

L PC ATbRIÖTYTNNFMNOGOIC K IP3
IO OMMOTISAChK OT QUAU TL UJOTOTCRIICRIUTECHL VUIRTIC VE FIIOTLUTVSIC PMOBEC BCOYyBOT PIKT OT.LAWHELOTC OuRRC ITI JIIL HWT AL OT JOCTIIEA FOlOCRIYUPOAOTNMKOTAÄRYRR QUy GTUMNCuaJwöcdd'cnö1JOT5LC OCYRINHO4 UVUIPWTOT YNEWIL COGCVLEra ÖCHOICTL POLARLT’ROI oCcCh

vTC3 R YMHOCIOT HIR gl 0971 R10C LO TCOTCOAOF OC 71cCrO JMNOT els ' LO DBYTWL IYoNK AT LOWMLT IOW 1a JaCaTH\
C4 aa 310OC JF NR Oh Wo109 4ChITAAWT IORCDOWTNMONC BCEPA bETOCBA} aq1Ö ‚d 1b OC NWYON

O5PYBWC OLT RÜATILIL OST ar>t-.1 TOCLIN0S KODQU SCS IR MCHLAN LEB O LIOTER 39101 SbICK OL 740
D YAFonTLC WT XO VJIOTLETCST ITWL NT P91010LUOR hU4DC Lra 7 CC HIM YOC

30 171073049767

Hıg The inseription the tympanon 1n Skı

1ın carlet; pızment an executed sometıme durıng the early of
the decade between 963 N 973, econtaıns VeLy valuable informatıon
pertaınıng LO the construct.ion of thıs church by LWO re1gNINS brothers,
Davıd Kuropalates and Bagrat, uke of Dukes This inser1ıption W as first
copıed by Mechitharıist Sdargıslıan and publıshed by Brosset 11LOTeEe

than CENTUTY ag0 In 1917 the Samıe inscr1ption Was studıed uN srtuı
an publıshed DYy T ‘akalsvılı?). However, T'“ akalsyvılı's facsımıle of thıs
inscr1ıption, ıts transecr1ıption into modern (mhedrulj) (GeOTglan, an the
decıphering of the abbrevjatıons contaın obvıo0us ErTOoTS Hor thıs 1EASON

In thıs place should be ment.oned the nıne spandre. f1gures holding masons’ ‚OOIS whiıich
derive TOM Armenlan tetraconch church In Ziwartnots (632) However, according to recent
finds these figures represent nOot 111250115 but the donors an! members of theır famılıes
(C Mnacakanian, Zivartnots, | Moskow, 5 9 f1igs

“Inécriptions Georgiennes et autres recueillies Par pere Nerses Sargıslan et, expliquees
Par Brosset’”, Memorres dAe ’ Academie Ades SCLENCES Ade SE Petersbourg, VIL serle, 111
(St. Petersbourg 1864 No

1917 cli8s arheologrurı ekspedıicıa samhret” sak‘art velosıi (T’bilisı 1960 47-49 Thereafter
T°akailivıalı Ekspedicıa,
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offerıng OW. readıng of the inser1ption and ıts Knglısh translatıon.
It 18 based fırst hand study of the inscr1ption N! photographs.
Sınce 1T ‘akalsvılı's facsımıle of the inscr1ption, ıts mhedrulı transcrıption
N! the solutiıon of abbreviatıons dıffer from each other, commMmMments
wiıll be based Takalishvılı's transcrıption. Following the tympanum
inser1ıption wıll CONVEY the letter eXCcEPT the when abbre-
vıatıons ÜT C resolved. The parenthesıs 18 employed LO resolve abbrevıatıons,
the brackets indıcate the ommıtted etters and Lacuna, the dots
indıcate approxımate number of etters which ave een ost

.rl-( OM0 YaM ı0000 MO0LSaQOS (MOMO L(BORU g CO mMOMra OLr CO o
HOMMZO3MAOU 0MYMzZaM9Od L369@M00US Q0L0L50 RN ©ID u30
C SdoU 0O0ULS MN IMzZbMAYOÖOS 26 @ö d bÖos D7 0CO0LS

COCOMMOULS AbOoLs MO LOOdMÖNMOLSQOO 0C0M008 0COQLS OM LO
35MM9O0LaQ
NO 09020000 @Ö 09M 6600 ©00 YOMZMOALS 030M003909E0L5200
CO o A0 000003203200 6bo U3MZIMZD0O0Ab am bm 9y bL
MO L SO UQ"CT)Ö
090C0808 VSC“0C07YÖME Q)Ö L3 ]9Omo OMYU MO aMmz0oMAaMzZObMmMLbors
0O hborS 0böc sdol) 090600 U50LS LYCOMOLS MODÖ SoSU O55

Mg LMMZERYÖMCCOOSD CM9LS
LHaMZeEMbO @Ö 0900233976M050 sL9696bo 090000 bo BÖ 09MomM
S6  e 5U96968LS 0 O0C08SM 3L 9603M9IOMOO SO0 e ©O 0 90C083MS
UMZMZOEM00S
S05 C00C07OMZOS 00 10105 MzZIMZMAM yb97b LL bo 0M
T‘akaiSvili,; (Ekspedicıa, 47) reads ıt “LaMYdYMbMANOOOMS”.

D7 I1bıdem.., reads r “8ö0')\)”
1bıdem., reads ıb ““M00C0003002M0°. Siıince In the orıginal inser1ption the word “* 90C00-

00300753° 1S not abbreviated but spelled In full, and assumıng that; the ser1ıbe cdid not make
C  , the thırteenth word of the second Iine should not be read ““900C0QLd””,

T akaisvili has done, but ““ 9(0)C(8)QLS”.
Ibıdem., reads it Aas U MaM3b00A06°.
1 bıdem., reads I as 4:0363b77.
'hıs word IS wrıtten ““09900@00L80LS” aDvV10OuUsS mistake of the serıbe that, Wäas no1

observed by T akalsvili.
30 [bıdem., reads ıt *03y COMALS”.

I1 bıdem.., reads ıt ““09000b0”,
I1 Peter 115
T Ka alr (Hxpedıcıa, 47), reads it A S 007 0MMO0”.
1 bıdem., reads ıt; S S “U6 bn.
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0d33Mbo 0OMZA3MA0LS 0LoMmzaU MOS 000 Ybo 0900C0Sbo 0900C0
0mMm02 5976 COo s 000 MMOSRY
B6MM9600 d MO 3MzZM067MZENR0LS SCoSMb9L7 3MZM3GIMIO)OLSOS
Ö2MC) 9600208 9160LM20b 03a0 LAMMLOD 53096506
00008050
30029 0M O 03MXMZYb0O0D N Looöd COO Scob MMOR39 (36M-
OO)Ö COV 09 AMOAMEN MOMU Qym O 0La 6MzZMÖLS SOSUL d b

MO O LS 000560 COO 09 327
o 0509 LO Ho 0aM00 COO SMHIMZDS s aMb9ÖSUS OO LS MO -
aMZEMMÖSE HOO Qb6b0UL.5 10910 10NY0) 9190 O4 aM OM 600 (COo 0MY)99C0@
00600 COO S6390 0943009

10 MuQ e 0900 SCOLS 05939600 CoMSddQ SO bLo MMZODMQX UO
M30DdQ O  O OMzZMÖSMO A SMdM 60 @ö OmzüMQ
@Ö 049070 MC O3MSCOQU 0M9oMm

E (COo 3090 J3 LS 30ÖC00 R MMO @Ö 63a 5633960
(MOAMZEN 090C00© V3MDCOOZLS 360ÖC08 v6öMzaQ 565383960 CM 45

KD ÖCoS
192 Q@ö Da na E FUO“I 9690 COO 0M )99C00

>|-C 0MYYaC9O0OS M(dM)O0LSLOS M(M09)EMO L(BORU Y(MA9)EMOMS
OMO(0)05 O(0)LOS @ö H MMZOSMOA(9)OL 0MYMZM9YOS L3 69@M0LS
doLobLaom)a Y(M39)MO) W(S)J)9(9)
09 3(9) SOOU 0(00)E0LS U(S)9(9)6(0)LS MO 0MZDMAYÖ(0)OS
@Ö (9m)6(9)6(0)00 0(00)C0LS O(9)EMAMOALS n(wm 9)b0LS O  (0)LO-
OMÖ(9)MO0LSAaOMS O(3)OMOOMS H(d0)Co(3)QLS O(9)EeMROLS 36MM960LdQ
09 090(9)3b0@0 COO 09M6(9)5(0)00 C0C07ÖMZMOLS D3 MO[L]O-
In inser1ption IS omitted the letter .
nstead of datıf (960L0820L3, 0330ULAMMUULS) inscr1ption employed narratıve (96M0La(S)-

20(5)5, 0330 LAMMULO(S)D).
T aal V1 Ibıdem., reads ıt s $ “ B5M3M9ös M,
I1 bıdem., reads 1t, As 5 ‘La )99LO”.
Ibıdem., reads ıt; A 2 ‘““0c0aM00”.
1 bıdem., reads it; s 9 “*9MammMmMÖJY”.
hıs word 1S omitted by T akais y ıll 7bıdem.).
T 8 Ka Vvill, Ibıdem.., reads it; “bbwag”.
1 bıdem., reads it Aa 2 ‘3 603839(6M0)”.
I1bıdem., reads ıt; “(dfiö)@\ä”.
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3999@M0L32O0 COo yu(M39)E O 090032020 M(mMdgen)bo USaMZIMZ-
000 Aa(3)O Laombm 9Y(m)b(9)L M(996) LS 50350 UY(M39)EMOS
090C080 LSC0C097Ö(9)E(S)C (Do NO MYy(9)L M(0M)O(0)3
aMz0MAaMZObMU(S)bors 99 h(m 9) bar 0(9)(9)S(S)C SOOoU 09O-
CO LSLS L(3)YCQMOLS M(S)OS SOSU 0(0)DS Mg LMMZERNÖMCcOOSb 0M9Ls
LOa mMzZeMbo COo 09003396M@006 3L9696(5)bo 090C08Mdbo 00 SMB)S
0960 S6  C 5U969638US 090003 MdLS 9 6003MIOME(9)® 505 Y(M39)EOMS
090C0300 LMZMZO0MO0MD
5050 ©0C07ÖMZ[EM] OS (9)9) h(wm 9)bors MZOMZMA(9)EM (m)b96
L3 U(9)b0 0MdsaR(S)eMbo 0M[M]Z2MOLS O(0)LOMZOU M(S)OS Y(mM-
39@m)bo 090Cbo IIC 0moab9b COV MOnMAdsb Ö(99  99
MMOR9Y
B6MM9Ö(5)0S (9)@S M(0M)O(0)2 3ZO 69MZeM0LS SCOSMDSLA 3035
Mdddma 0La orSCO9600032300 9M0LmM(3)30(5)6 03a0 L-
MMLO(S)b L307030(5)b 090C03050
US0bo29 00R MYD 03MXMZ9b000 O(Z)LoS COo S(co0)@(9)6b m®o*>ogg
36MM9ÖS(3)OS COo 09 AMOAMMM MOMUL Oym m(d9Mds)b 0L 6MzM96(5)LS
So5L O(5)0 LS M(9M)0LS 0005607 COo 09 00
o LS[1199 L 6(9c6)3-0[w]aMm0o (\OÖ SMHOMZDS m(99Mo03)b aMb9Ö3LS
O(3)0 L IOONaMzZMMÖJSE h(9)90 o(m)b0 L3 0(53)M 0 LaQ 909 “ M ö-
ÖM 6078 COo 0M J)99C0MS 006000 @Ö Sbaagmors 0943009
MNdQ M(Md9g)EM 09M 00L 09M9a9o0L OMd3ddQ 503 bLo MMZObME
(0LM)LO M300bdQ OMZMÖSEO 09020 aMa M bO
COo Om[z]6ümMQ COo 0 49C09®M0 M(m09) [MOS]MSCOU Ö(wm)M9oMm

14 (Oo 3(5)6M0 M(MO9)EM ]30 L5 30(9)ÖC0 » MMO COo Lb6(m)ae
5633960 M(mMd9)eM aM0aMZEM-000C0007 VSMDCOO3LS 30(9)ÖC08
Lv6mzdae 56323960 M(M0d9)EM K [360(9)16CoS K

42 QQ)Ö röo_l 960 @ö 0Mm)99Cc00

By the of (+0d who protects those who honor hım 2Rl wh
benevolently leade LO SUCGESS a ]] g00d deeds of those who love hıs ame
Wıth behef 1n the Holy Irımıty and the intercession of OUT Holy Queen
Mother of (4+0d ıth the of the Holy W ood of Lıfe
ıth the help an intercession of the glor10us Baptıst N: a 11 the Saılints
who devoted themselves LO (+0d from the beginnıng
(ıt 1S) for the glorıficatıon anı pralise of a. ]] these Saınts that OUT dıyınely
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erowned Kıngs began the econstruction of thıs holy church that
1ın ıt could be celebrated
holy days an the Saılnts splendıdly commemorTated, ıt 1s wrıtten :
partake 1n the ecommemorTatıon of the Saınts’”. By the desıre of a,{]
those Saılınts
those glor10US kıngs of OUTS dıd no0t transıent rıches for that which
18 permanent, ın order LO merıt the aıld of a ll those Saınts, aN! mMa y
(+0d help In both
lıyes the SONS of dıvınely blessed Adarnese Kuropalates, Bagrat, uke
of Dukes, (and) Davıd Magıstros. The Holy TIrinıty
shall protect a, 11 three hıs rıght sıde an glorıfy them In both lıvyes.
1: Grigol, Was made worthy by (+0d LO the Lord through them

Was

the SUPErVISOT of the labors an mMay G(G0d CONvınNce them of devotion
LO them, theır servant. The yearly expendıtures an for the INAasons

an hıred laborers N! for the OX WagONS Carryıng
10 the sand Was M 20) thousand drama *7, the wıne I! 9.000

ph1ıs0s48, the iron 50) hlıters49, the gTaln SMI I 290) OT1V1°9,
the number of steadıly laboring INAasONS, Carpenters and blacksmithse

14 (was) JI e 70), the (number of) (XCH CartTyıng the stone AD 510)
the mules aN! other pack anımals which WeTe transporting the
spondık1°1 from the eNvıronNsS of (the MONastery OT) Holy Grigol AD 30)
the other CaTrrlers whıch WeTe gathering E T 60)

z N 60) aN! (the 0729 number OT) 1INan an
those laboring (ın the construction of the church) RE 80)

Thus ın OUTL sıngularly informatıve inser1ption find nOot only the
of donors (Bagrat, uke of Dukes 7966 / an Davıd Kuropalates 710017/);
and the of the SUPeELVISOT of construct.ion (Grigol), but a,1sS0 detaıjled
2CCOUNLT of the yearly of the MONasSter y drama,) an

Drama Il axma) Was sılver CO1n whiıich equalled the Arabiece dıiırhem (L vahı SV1
K‘art‘ulz numızmatıka da metrologıa (T’bilisı 16,

Phisos 18 the wıne (OT lıquıd) ecAasure. Phisos derives TOM ersian Phızus ak a1ısSVvVı L
Ekspediıcıa, 481.)

During the Middle Ages, the lıter equalled 64 mishalı ounces), whereas ONe mishalı
equalled 4..266 STamn, Consequently, litra equals 213 kg.

Grivı 1S the CcAasure of graın an equals kg anı 400 Consequently 250 OT1VI
3.3925 kg 'T’he term OT1VI 1s frequently used In Georgian Biblical eEXDS (Numbers AA . tenth
deal of flour  7  » Kz L-13 “*<sixth part of ephah of homer of wheat’”’ ; Mt. A111-33), ONE

OT1V1 mOodios ( 006L05).
Yor spondıkı, SC6 note
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payments un NATUTAa 9.000 pPh1sos of wıne, 2350) OTIVI graın)®? and the Varlous
materıjals employed for the construetion of the church (sand, sandstone,
POTOUS lıghtweight stOoNe /spondıkı1/ an hıters of 1T0N). The number of
steadıly laborıng CONSTtrUCGLOTS, MasOoNS, an blacksmıiıths W as ( the total
number of 101e laborıng 1ın the econstruection of the church, Ö! the total
number of OXeN transporting SstOoNe., an mules and other pack anımals
gatherıng POTOUS stonNne,

Archatects, Masons, SUPETVLSOTS of Uonstruchon, anıd Donors

Oontrary LO Byzantıne practice, In Tao-Klarjet’1 the dOonors, archıtects,
MasOoNs, SUPETVISOTS of works, an EeVEeN the COMMLMON laborers d1d not
remaın ANONYMOUS , theır WerTe frequently recorded and theır okıl]
praısed 1n lıterary SOUTCES, 1ın inscr1pt1ons carved OT paınted the walls
of churches. In SOINe instances EVEeI theır ımages carved ın relhef.
Kor instance, Olle of the southern capıtals of the dome’s blınd arcade
91 Oskı 1S carved the half-figure of INa  z Carryıng stone strapped hıs
back ıth LWwO (fıg. 10) Thıs damaged sculpture Ma y represent
aborer 9 perhaps OInNeONe assoc]1ated ıth sıgnıfıcant epısode
of the church’s constructıion. SINCE it OCcCcupIeES promınent place an Ca  -

easıly be vIiewed from the Bıshop's quarters3, Krom the inscr1ıption of the
tympanum of the southern GCTOSSaLIN 91 Oskı, NOW that the SUPervVISOr
of construect.ion WaSs named Gr1igol>4, There 1s even STONEe relhef of Grigol
accompanıed by ıdentifyıng inscrıption the western face of
octagonal pıer of the southern porch (Tıg 0)55 sımılar but INOTeEe crudely

On the of construct.ion workers and blacksmiths ın monetary OoTM uN NAtuUura
ın Byzantıum, X60 Ostrogorsky "Löhne und Preise In Byzanz’” ByZ 290Bf.
YFor SÖIII‘CQS of 1asonsSs aN! stone utters In the sixth-seventh centurles, X66 S 0 U>=
1188; “Trades nd crafifts In the sixth-seventh centurles viewed ın the lives of the Saints’””,
Byzantınoslavıca 37 1976 ISS

In Georgla PFODEL, the only example compara ble LO Skı 1S ın Bagrat’s Cathedral al
“ut‘aisı. Here, the eastern portion of the southern wall, Just below the Corni1ıce, 18 the
sculpture of 1112A1 supporting Carryıng stone wıth hıs elevated hands (W Cincadze,
Bagratıs Tadzarı ı T’bilısı L1g 11) FKor the interpretation of such representatıons SCE

Gerhardt, ‘**Das Petrus-Bekenntnis 1n der Slavenmission’”. Byzantıon 533-544,
especlally

Infra, L
T’akaisvili,; Hkspedicıa, 47-51 ; Wınfield, "Some Medieval KFıigural Sculpture

TOM North-east of Lurkey“ Journal of the Warburg anıd (ortauld Institute 31 1968 4 9 fig 20b
It 18 incorrect LO ıdent1ify Grigol master-mason architect because the Skı inscr1ption
unequlvocally STAaTESs that Grigol Was the “supervisor’” of construction. hıs tıtle distinet
TOM “architeet”’ “**master-mason’’ — . GYIStea ın Georgla before the tenth CENTUTY. For
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he modelFig Doliskana. The drum of the dome King Sumbat (T 958) extending
of his church.
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Fig Thet“i (Now IN Nat Mus of Georgia In Tbhilisi).
King Asot II Kuropalates ktitor of the church (Photo

Nat Museum ın 11181).
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executed rehef 1S preserved the wındow hlintel of the western facade
of the Parhalı basılıca (buult shortly before 973). Thıs ANsS fıgure (fıg. LL
1S identifıed bYy the accompanyıng inser1ption A Theodore. He

girdled plaın secular costume, an SINCE the donor of thıs church 1S ell
known an the archiıitect’s 1S not recorded, the modest fıgure of Theodore
could ell he the master NMasoil

The architectural sculpture of the ne1ighbourıng church 1 Doliskana

(shortly before 958) Was carved ((by the hand of Gabrıel, deacon’”. Hıs
bust ın circular radıatıng frame ın the form of chpPEUS 18 ocated above
the identıfyıng inser1ption ın the southern GCTOSSAL of the church (fıg 12)
Thus ıt a P PCAaIs that Gabrıel Was not only the deacon but the sculptor
and perhaps the archıtect well56, ıke the famous monk, Serapıon
of Zarzma, WhO, accordıng to hıs bıographer, Basıl, ec  wWwas superbly raıned
ın architectural matters”’57.

We 6}78  n identıfy the SO1S of Handzt’a an ISshanı As ell The hr0s
of Grigol of Handzt’a mentıJons Amona., bullder of the maın (second) monastıec
church. Amona., actıve 1ın the early tenth CENTUTY, eviıdently Was renowned
master-mason He Was praised by the bıographer of Grigol of Handzt’a,
MercCule, “bhullder ıth wısdom  "58. According the inser1ption
the clocktower of the SAarmlıe church, the celocktower Was built by Markoz

(Marcos) an Abesalma Kldeli5? We NOW from the lengthy inser1ıption
of the southern al of the cathedral church at IShanı that ın thıs
church W a completely renovated by loane MoreCaıisdze®9,

It 18 a 1SO known that the fırst church at Zarzma Was built by the
archıteect Garbaneli®1, and the second church DYy Suartkelis2.

14 18 not intended LO ıst the Mal y NHEeS of less signıfıcant
instance, ın the hr08 of Serapıon 7 37 111 (ninth century), W C6 read that during the eonstruction

of the fırst church ““the archıtect (0: master-mason) an the supervi1sor of construction /labor””
WETIT'C present. (Z 37 111 C A DL08, 330)

Marr, 0 C4 154, L1g 6l; l) Ingorokva, (Aiorqge Mercule, 359
57 7 11© L DL08., S] As LO the close assoclatıon between Georglan and Syr1an churches,

it. 18 instruct.ıve to ment.ıon that 38 similar situatıon existed also ın Syria  a} where the Presbyter
Diodoros (builder of the TEa church at Dar Kıta) and KYyrTI1S WET'C Iso archıtects, xwhiıle the

archıteect (Otrkodoj0s) Petros Was deacon well C Butler, Harly churches un SYria,
ı Princeton, 1929] 257) 'The archıtect of St. Martha’s martyrıum, Angoulas, WEaSs 37 monk of

the MONAaSsStery of St Symeon Stylıtes the Y ounger s ell Mango, "*Isaurı]an builders’”,
“* Polychronvon” Festschrıft Dölger (1967) 360f.

MercGule, DL08., TE
MeröGule, br08S., BA
Marr, C 144, 145 Figs 51-52
T-akasısryıl Ekspedicıa, ITE
Zarzmelil, DL08., 335
Ibıd., 344
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ass0c1ated ıth the econstruection of these churches;: 1t; ll suffice LO mentıion
only LWwoO of the mOost interesting inscr1ıptions. HKırst 18 OnNne ın red pızment

the part of the eastern facade 1ın the basılıcal church 91 Parhalı,
where the laborers, SLTONe Ccutters, MasoNs, anı 6Cven blaeksmith ALe

mentioned®3. The second example 18 ın Hahulı, where the of eight
INasons Ar inser1ıbed the bases of the dome’s engaged shafts64

Sıgnificant iınformatıon CONCETNING donors 1S contaıned 1ın Georglan
hagıographıcal hlıterature. Here learn that ın the Klarjet‘-SavSet‘ reg10N
1n the eight-tenth centurı1es, the spirıtual ıfe of the monaster]jes Was

vigorously nourıshed by men of (*+0d” However, reflected 1n the CONSTtTTUC-
tıon of monasterl1es and churches, the realızatıon of their ideals Was

accomplıshed by of the maßterıial SUPPOITt an persona|l eNcouragement
of secular rulers. In the hr08 of Serapıon of Zarzma 1t; 1s told that °“the
sServant of God, GHo0721 Cortaneli, DaVC LO the multitude of brethren a 11
the necessıt]es (for the construection of the church of Zarzma) and DMalLy
mules and donkeys they needed’’65. As regards the econstruection of the
mMmOoNastery of Satberdi, read 1ın the hr0s of Grigol of Handzt’a that
.. thereafter agra Kuropalates 826-876) Joyfully ordered the construection
of the monastery (of Satberdi) an DaVE (to Grigol of Handzt’a) al} the
necessıt]es for ıts construcetion66. Ün NEW church 21 the MONasSter y of
Handzt’a W as begun ıth the materı1a|l support of the local ruler Asot, uke
of Dukes (7 918) who, the bros of Grigol of Handzt’a reveals, ‘“enthuslastı-
cally began ıth the construction of the 1Ne  z church ,7 Handzt’a and OVeL-

whelmed 1t; ıth countless donatıons ” e7. Among these WwWeTe VarTIlIOUS materı1a|l
necessıt]es an arable and 1n abundance, SINCE thıs MONaStery built the
steep slopes of hıgh mountaın Was iıll-sunted for agrıicultural SCS.
The Same ®OUTCEe ınforms of the eirceumstances leadıng LO the construect.ion
of the orı1gınal church 21 Handzt’a “the glorıfıed nobleman (+abrıiel sent.
off Father Grigol wıth presents and DaVE hım the master INasons

an 9,1] the materı1aJ|l needed LO buılld the MOoNasSter y church ”” e8. Kvıdently
T - aKRıST1IL Ekspedicıa, 01-93 have detected addıtional the part

of the eastern facade, maınly around the circular ornamented wiındow frame.
1 b1d., In the Samne reg1lon, irequently encounter the of the ser1ibes N! book

iıllustrators, bookbinders, sılver an! goldsmiths, and sometımes ‚Vn the amount of payments
which they received for theır labor. Yor instance, the gospel of Ckarost’avı (which 18 located

Oski) contaıns the inftormatıon that ı1ts em bossed gilded book Was made by ek’a
Opı1zarı, for which work he received ‘*drama)”’ dirhem). ek’a Opizarı em bossed hıs Nname

the book-cover ıtself. (S vılı, ek’a Omızarı | L’bilısı
Zarzmell, DL08., 335
MercCule, b108., 273

67 1 b1d., D DE
[ bıd., 260
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Gabriel‚ who was H funct10onary 1 the of Asot L had hıs OW.

master 11LAasSoNs whom he could ıspatc wherever he desıired. However,
1ın such the MONaSter y church U Oskı where the project Was INOTe

extensıve and the prıvate construct.on force of ruler insuffıcıent, addıtiıonal
MasOoNSs,; laborers N! stOoNe OCarvers HaV ave een hıred

deep devotıon LO the OChrıistian faıth 18 tangıbly reflected 1n the
econstruct.ion of churches and eagerly dısplayed for a{ ] LO See 1ın the
rehefs of salvatıon-seekıng local rulers who proudly hold models of the
churches buıllt DYy themselves. An exam.ple 1S the rehef of sSot the Great
(T 826) who humbly presents model of the church he had bıult , ÜOpıza
LO the Pantoecrator OChrıst 18 shown enthroned In the heaven above the

celestial spheres, placıng hıs rıght elongated hand approvıngly
the model of the church (fıg. 13) On the southeastern face of the dome’s
cylınder at Dohskana 1S rehef of Kıng Sumbat ( 958) ıth the model
of hıs church (fıg. 14) Another instructive sculpture <hows Kıng sot I1
(891-918), the buıllder of the church 91 Lbet’1, wıth model of the SamIne

church, whıich 1s broken off (fıg. 15) The Sovere1gn 18 elad 1ın SUMPTtUOUS
garment, probably of al 69 long girdled tunıec completely embro1ldered
ıth rhombo1ild patterns ‚N! heavy long-sleeved Overcoat”?® cCovered ıth
embroıl1dered marchıng hons?71 (Tıg. D} of dıstinetly orjental derıyatıon.

Such poss1ibıilıty 18 supported Iso by the high eCONOMIC sStatus of Asot’s Se21 Ardanu]l,
which W ASs al thıs tıme flourıshing cıty where x00ds TOM faraway places handled
(C n S, De Adminıstrando I'mmervo 46) In thıs regard iıt 1s interesting
to noOote that, according LO Ibn augal 977-978), In neighboring Dvın large amount of
fashionable siılk clothing WEaßs manufactured. (Bıiblıotheca (+eographorum Arabıcorum, ed. de
G oej IL | Leiden 245)

Coats of simılar design C&  > be SCCI1I1 the famous Aase of heodosius 390-393 In

Constantinople ell the images of Patrıkıos an rı Hynatos
AT the erucıtorm church 1, Mcehet’a (Georgla, built, 586/587-605 /606). On both ofese monuments
NS D) adze, u hO Sculptures the Kastern Facade of Holy (ross of Mcehet’a” OrChr
45 1961 ] i L1g L 1960] ‚er 120, figs. They Ca  > Iso be SeceMN AT Atenı Cubinaßt-
vılı, Pamıatnıkız 1'1Da Dijvarı 181 | L’balısı pl 53) simılar costume 1s WOTT1 by Saharuni
an hıs wılfe the eastern facade of Mren (built 638-640) D] obadze, C: OrChr
| 1961 | I note 1306 where addıtıonal examples ALr C quoted). On this account, SCcC Iso an

L3RIierTYy; "L8; Cathedrale de Mren et, decoration ” (Jahrıers d’ Archeologıique XN )’
L1g Such cCOoats wıth elongated decoratiıive sleeves SCE1I11 LO ave been WOTI'I1 for long tiıme
ın Georgla. T’he Iatest example of similar 02a1 1S WOI'IL by King Leon 1n the squinch of the
dome al Kumurdo (964) an V1  ; Kumurdo Nikoreminda
Moskow 1947 pl XE below

Since the Prec10us COal of Ashot I1 Was not Just another commodity but symbol of
authorıty, ıt; 1S sıgnıf1cant LO mentı.on that eNcounter thıs Oriental eme of alert lıons
ıth their angular full-faced heads turned In Tontal posıtıon anı aprised A11s ending ın
knohb textiles manutfactured In the Byzantıne Imperial workshops of the en CENTUTY ;
SCC, for example, the textiue of Jjegburg bearıng the Namlle of Kmperor OMANnOSsS (Lakapenos)



'The Georglan Churches of Tao Klarjet 133

Another 1mportan donor fıgure of ONe of the LWO buıjlders of the
magnıfıcent church 91 OSkı Davıd Magıstros wh WEATS heavy chlamys
whıich ıke the OVercoat of sSot E1 richly embroıl1dered ıth cırcles (Tıg 5)

thıs Case they contaın eagles nstead of hons?2 OoOMme of the rulers WeTe

aCct1ive bulldıng churches 1ke the Davıd Magıstros who besiıdes
Oskı buılt second amall barrel vaulted church nearby the domed church
T Hahulı, an two large basılıcas : Ot ht Kıklesıa an Parhalı. Here
should be mentıioned, also, Kıng of Kıngs, Gurgen (7 1008 who buiilt only
ON small but beautıful chapel ı Ishanı (1006)73,

T'hus ıt aD PEAIS that the STEAL PrOSrah of MONASTIC colonızatıon
Tao Klarjet’1 Was carrıed out ıth materı1al 3a1 from the local secular
rulers and ıth the spirıtual support of devout monks 'Thıs collaboratıon

referred LO often lıterary OUE! when the local feuda|l lord (Aabrıiel
Dap anculı's addresses Grigol of Handzt °“Now POSSESS the materja|l
wealth an yOou POSSECSS the spiırıtual wealth aN! shall blend these ıth
each other You chall let partake yOUr holy Prayvyers thıs ıfe and
thereafter, an after OUT death honor by buryıng OLE bones ıth yOUr
bones And establısh 111 yOUr MONaSteErYy OUT COoMMeMOTAtıon for etern1ty,
an PTOMISE VOU an OUT chıldren from generatıon generatıon
the sohe1ıtude of brethren an YOUTr MONasSter y eternıty‘ 74

The founders of the Bagratıon dynasty, mMOost devout OChrıstians N!
descendents from the Kıng and Prophet Davıd and the aNCcesStoOors of OChr1ist 75
WeTe frequently represented the walls of the churches ably fulfıllıng
theır dıyıne duty an presenting the ° House of (x+0d ” they bult LO the Lord

an Christophoros, the SOMn of Constantine VILI (921 923) VO Falke, Kunstgeschichte
der Serdenweherer Berlın 1936 fıg 189%2 the textile 111 Düsseldorf beariıng the of
Emperors Basıl I1 an (C'onstantine 411 (976 1025 (A Kendrick Vıctorıa nd Albert
M useum Catalogue of arly Medieval Woven Fabrıcs (London 1925 an the fabrıe
Maestricht Saint: Servals representing portıon of l1ıon (tenth eleventh century V O:
bach yzantın Art European Art (Athens 1964 473 No 279) and nınth tenth cCentury
silk Museo Natıonale avenna ( W Volbach Harly Decorative "VT’extale (London 1967
136 140 fig 66) See ‚Iso ONeE of the earlıest dated Byzantine textiles (886 912) which
deseribed FKFrench chronicle esStia nontıfıcum Autıossodorensvum Frolow, Quelques
Inseriptions SUur des (PUVTES Art Au Moyen Age’’, O(ahrers Archeologıiques VI 1952 163 167
an (41 bar ‘*Les Succes des TtS Orientaux la Byzantıne SOUS les Macedoniens
Münchener Jahrbuch der Bıldenden K unst 1951 33 Idem, “Le rayonnement de art
Sassanıde dans le monde Chretien La Persia Medıoevo, Accademıa Nazıonale der lıncer, (Rome
1971 694

D] C, *IS Donor Reliefs an the ate of the Church al Osk1ı”. ByZ 69 76) 46
K T1,: Hkspnpedicıa,

C, b108., 260,4-9
Porphyrogenitus, De Adım Imp ed Moravesık (Budapest 1949) Ch. 45 ;

Meröeule, br0S., 262,29-31
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These rulers and theır famıly members WeIe worshıped In the churches
durıng theır Llıfetimes an after. theır deaths, they wWerIe eagerly commemorated
1n lıturgıes and EeVEeN In commemorTatıve inscr1ıptions such that 1ın the
narthex a Oskı?e An affınıty ıth the church went beyond InNneTe worshıp
an commemorTatıon of the Kıngs In the house of God; 1n accordance ıth
the words of Gabrıel Dap‘anGuli, the church became the eternal resting place
of the rulers of Tao-Klarjet‘1 aN! theır famıly members. These ineluded
Asot; the Great, Kuropalates (# 826), an hıs SON, (Guaram Mamp’alı ( 582),
who actıvely supported the rebuildıng an development of monasterles.
The fırst Was burıed 1ın the church of Peter an Paul ın Ardanu]1””, the
second, iın the church of John the Baptıst 1ın the mMOoNastery of Opiza?8.
Sımılarly, ASot, uke of Dukes 896-918), who began the constructjion of
the Nne  < church In the monastery of Handzt’a wıth hıs OW. materıja|l rFESOUTCES,
Was buriıed ın the Same church?®; thıs Was also true of the buıjlders of the
church al Oskı, Bagrat, uke of Dukes (7 966) an perhaps hıs famous
brother, Davıd Kuropalates ( 1001

ost of these churches AIe NO fılled ıth debriıs an the lıterary SOUTCES
do no0t define the specıfic burıal sıtes wıthın the church, but ın two
the burıjal places Ca  - be ascertaıned : 1n ÜOpiıza where Kıng (+uaram Was
burıed In the arcosolium of the western narthex8°, an 1n S71 where Bagrat,
uke of Dukes, an presumably other members of the Bagratıon rulıng
famıly, WeIe buriıed 1ın lofty TYP beneath the church81.

1, Ekspedicia, 55-56.
K'art‘lis Chovreba, ed. Kauhö6&isvili (Tbilisi 377,26-27.
[ bıd., 260

Ö, bro08., 277,12-14.
VarToOo Y Materualy Arkheologt Kavkaza 111 (Moskow

T-akaistvili Ekspedicia,


